Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

SCITECH DEVELOPMENT L.L.C.
P.O. Box 36927
Grosse Pointe Farms, MI 48236
SciTechSDP.com

Up to $4,999,997.75 in Units at $2.75
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: SCITECH DEVELOPMENT L.L.C.

Address: P.O. Box 36927, Grosse Pointe Farms, MI 48236
State of Incorporation: MI

Date Incorporated: March 27, 2000

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.00 | 3,636 shares of Units
Offering Maximum: $4,999,997.75 | 1,818,181 shares of Units
Type of Security Offered: Units

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $2.75

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $275.00

*Maximum Number of Units Offered subject to adjustment for bonus units. See Bonus
info below.

Company Perks

Time-Based Bonuses®:

¢ Invest within the 1st week and receive 20% bonus shares.
e [nvest within the 2nd week and receive 15% bonus shares.
e [nvest within the 3rd week and receive 10% bonus shares.
e [nvest within the 4th week and receive 5% bonus shares.

Volume Based Bonuses and Perks*:

Tier 1

e Invest >$500, yvou will receive 5% bonus shares.
Tier 2

e Ifyou invest >$1,500, you will receive 10% bonus shares.
Tier 3

¢ [fyou invest >$5,000, you will receive 15% bonus shares.
Tier 4

o Ifyou invest >$10,000, you will receive 20% bonus shares and an in-person® or
virtual meeting with the leadership team.

*Investors cannot qualify for both bonuses in any single investment. If an investor
qualifies for two bonuses the higher of the two bonuses will be applied. All perks occur



after the offering is completed.

**Travel Not Included

*All perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

SciTech Development LLC will offer 10% additional bonus Units for all investments
that are committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding
Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine members will receive a 10% bonus for any units they
purchase in this offering. For example, if yvou buy 100 Units at $2.75/unit, yvou will
receive 110 Units, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $275. Fractional Units will not be
distributed and unit bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the nearest
whole unit.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are cancelled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.

Insider Investment Notice

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.
The Company and its Business

Company Overview

SciTech Development is a Limited Liability Company (L.L.C.) organized under the laws
of the State of Michigan and is a specialty pharmaceutical company that has developed
a unique nanoparticle drug delivery platform that enhances the stability and
bioavailability of water insoluble therapeutics. SciTech’s lead drug candidate ST-001
nanoFenretinide is the company's initial lead drug which combines its proprietary
drug delivery platform (SDP) with fenretinide, the active pharmaceutical ingredient
(API). The Company has 3 employees.

Fenretinide has been shown to be safe and effective in treating multiple cancer
indications in both adult and pediatric patients (approx. 40 clinical studies and 3000+
patients). Fenretinide kills cancer cells while not harming healthv cells. Its multiple
mechanisms of action (MOA) provide for a safe, broader therapeutic reach with



greater clinical outcomes. The phospholipids that make up the drug delivery platform
used in delivering fenretinide (ST-001 nanoFenretinide) have been extensively used in
humans and are recognized as safe by the U.S. FDA.

ST-001 nanoFenretinide has received Investigational New Drug (IND) approval by the
FDA to enter the clinic for the treatment of lymphoma (IND No. 135475). SciTech has
received Institutional Review Board (IRB) approval to initiate its ST-001
nanoFenretinide clinical trial at the Rush University Medical Center
(ClinicalTrials.gov Identifier: NCT04234048).

The FDA has also granted Orphan Drug Status to ST-001 nanoFenretinide for the
treatment of cutaneous T-cell lymphoma (CTCL) and peripheral T-cell lymphoma
(PTCL) which provides the company with marketing exclusivity, exemption/waiver
from FDA filing fees, and tax benefits.

SciTech Development is the co-inventor, co-owner and exclusive licensee of U.S.
Patent No. 8,709,379 (issued April 29, 2014) titled “"Liposomal Nanoparticles and
Other Formulations of Fenretinide for Use in Therapy and Drug Delivery”. The
company holds international patent coverage in the major global oncology markets:
Canada and the European Union (notably Great Britain, France, and Germany). The
company’s issued utility patent includes both composition of matter and methods of
production claims. SciTech’s patent claims are both broad and specific, thereby,
effectively blocking creative workaround strategies. SciTech's patent expiry has been
extended to February 2030.

It is anticipated that SciTech will file additional patents that make use of its
nanoparticle suspension technology to deliver other drugs as well as in combination
therapy. Additional IP will be generated from new discoveries made during clinical
trials to expand its ST-001 IP runway. Specifically, SciTech’s IP will be enhanced &
extended with claims derived from data collected during clinical trials and new
product innovation. Innovation derived from ST-001 clinical use includes:

« Expanded indications

« Combination therapies

» Product improvements

« New mechanisms of action

Innovation derived from new products include:

« Specific combinations with other promising poorly water-soluble drugs

« [IND: topical product in CTCL, AK, other cancers, and skin conditions

« Other medically important compounds (vitamin deficiencies due to rare diseases)

In addition to its patent position, the company has a great deal of “know-how”
regarding its ST-001 product manufacture which it generally retains as trade secrets.



The company currently has no registered trademarks.

Presently, SciTech is functioning as a virtual company with its key team members
located throughout the country. SciTech’s immediate goal is to complete its planned
Phase 1a/1b clinical trial after which time it plans to develop strategic partnerships
with larger pharmaceutical companies who have the resources to sell and market the
drug. The prevailing business model for small drug development companies is to be
acquired by a larger pharmaceutical company.

SciTech is a Manager Managed LLC. Earle Holsapple is the sole Manager and as such,
has full authority over the LLC. Certain matters outlined in Section 5.1 of the SciTech
Operating agreement require majority approval from the Initial Members of Scitech
(See Exhibit F for additional information). Earle Holsapple and Ralph Parchment are
the two Initial Members of SciTech ( See Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of
the Securities section for percentage voting rights pertaining to approval required for
items listed in Section 5.1 of the SciTech Operating Agreement).

Competitors and Industry

SciTech's general industry sector is the pharmaceutical and biotech industry which
can be classified in accordance with the following industry and related codes:

« North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Code: 541715 (R&D in the
Physical, Engineering, and Life Sciences).

» Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code: 2834 (Pharmaceutical Preparations).

» Industry Classification Benchmark (ICB) Classification Number: 20103015
(Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology, Pharmaceuticals).

« Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS) Code: 3520 (Pharmaceuticals,
Biotechnology & Life Sciences).

SciTech’s lead drug candidate is ST-001 nanoFenretinide for the treatment of cancer.

ST-001 nanoFenretinide’s initial cancer indication is for the treatment of T-cell non-
Hodgkin's lymphoma (NHL) targeted to the US, Canada, and the European Union. The
global T-cell lymphoma market was valued at $1.5 billion in 2020 and is expected to
reach $2.5 billion by 2026 (1).

SciTech’s only known direct competition is CerRx, Inc., which has developed an
emulsion-based fenretinide formulation currently undergoing clinical trials (2). The
excipients (non-actives) used in CerRx’s fenretinide formulation are responsible for
drug dosing limitations (safety concerns) which are not expected in the ST-001
nanoFenretinide formulation due to SciTech’s sole use of phospholipid excipients.

Current FDA approved products for the treatment of T-cell lymphoma include the
following general classes of drug compounds and associated drugs (3):

» Chemotherapeutics - temozolomide (Temodar, Temodal and Temcad),



cyclophosphamide, chlorambucil gemcitabine (Gemzar®), deoxycoformycin
(Pentostatin), methotrexate, fludarabine etoposide (VePesid®, Toposar®, Etophos®)

» Retinoid Subgroup - bexarotene (Targretin®)

 Histone Deacetylase (HDAC) Inhibitors - vorinostat (Zolinza®), romidepsin
(Istodax®), belinostat (Beleodaq®)

» Therapeutic Antibodies - brentuximab vedotin (Adcetris®) targeting CD30+ disease;
mogamulizumab (Poteligeo®) targeting CCR5

None of the currently FDA approved drugs provide adequate therapeutic outcomes.
Emerging drugs currently undergoing clinical trials for the treatment of NHL include
masitinib (AB Science, Paris), tipifarnib (Kura Oncology, Inc., San Diego), ontorpacept
(Trillium Therapeutics, Mississauga) and darinaparsin (Solasia Pharma K.K., Tokyo)
(4). Although these emerging drugs continue to undergo clinical studies, fenretinide's
drug safety profile appears to be significantly better than these emerging drugs.

ST-001 nanoFenretinide is expected to fill a large underserved market in the oncology
drug space.
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Gutierrez, Min H. Kang, Denice Tsao-Wei, C. Patrick Reynolds, Edward M. Newman
and Barry ]. Maurer, Phase I Study of Fenretinide Delivered Intravenously in Patients
with Relapsed or Refractory Hematologic Malignancies: A California Cancer
Consortium Trial, Clin Cancer Res August 15, 2017 (23) (16) 4550-4555; DOI:
10.1158/1078-0432.CCR-17-0234
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and-databases
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Current Stage and Roadmap

SciTech Development is ready to enter the clinic in a Phase 1 clinical trial of ST-001
nanoFenretinide for the treatment of lymphoma. Having already received IND and IRB
approvals, the company requires funding to manufacture a clinical supply of drug and
to conduct its clinical studies.

SciTech's immediate goal is to complete its initial clinical studies and commercialize
ST-001 nanoFenretinide for the treatment of T-cell lymphomas based on a rapid phase
1a/1b clinical trial strategy provided with guidance from the FDA (5). This clinical trial
strategy supports a rapid time-to-market of the ST-001 nanoFenretinide therapeutic
opportunity of about 2-3 years. Commensurate with the ongoing lymphoma clinical
trial, SciTech will initiate a clinical trial of ST-001 nanoFenretinide for the treatment



of small cell lung cancer (SCLC).

The market opportunity for cancer drugs is vast. Fenretinide is cytotoxic in various
cancer cell lines, including neuroblastoma, leukemia, and lymphoma, as well as
colorectal, head and neck, breast, prostate, lung, ovarian, cervical, and pancreatic
cancer. SciTech’s initial focus is bringing to market a single-mode drug therapy
(notably, ST-001 nanoFenretinide as a standalone drug treatment). However,
combination drug therapy opportunities will be pursued with pharmaceutical
companies with existing (strategic) cancer drugs.

Given below are cancer indications in which clinical or pre-clinical evidence supports
the use of fenretinide as a therapeutic agent and represent SciTech’s future target
markets (global values that could easily lead to a multi-billion-dollar addressable
market).

Cancer Indication Prevalence (6)

Metastatic Breast Cancer (MBC) 35,872
Neuroblastoma 1,600

T-ALL (Acute Lymphoblastic Leukemia) 1,788
Owvarian Cancer 58,3215

Endometrial Cancer 126,460

B-Cell Lymphoma 36,300

Pancreatic Cancer 343,972

Prostate Cancer 2,129,909

Kidney Cancer 130,680

SciTech is also developing a topical version of fenretinide for the treatment of actinic
keratosis (AK, a precancerous condition), basil & squamous cell carcinomas and
cutaneous T-cell.

The company will engage strategic partners to help in addressing the vast number of
market and drug combination opportunities the nanoFenretinide opportunity
represents.

References
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2018
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The Team

Managers

Name: Earle T. Holsapple, III
Earle T. Holsapple, III's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: CEO, President & Co-Founder
Dates of Service: January 01, 2001 - Present
Responsibilities: Earle's primary responsibilities include making major company
decisions, managing the overall operations and resources of the company. He
currently receives a salary compensation of $250K per year and owns 49.0%
equity in the company.

Name: Louis M. Scarmoutzos, Ph.D.
Louis M. Scarmoutzos, Ph.D.'s current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Operations Officer (COQ)
Dates of Service: February 06, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Lou is tasked with overseeing the day-to-day administrative
and operational functions of a business as well as providing assistance to the
CEQ. He currently receives a salary compensation of $170K per year and owns
10.4% equity in the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Larta Institute
Title: Principal Advisor
Dates of Service: September 01, 2004 - Present
Responsibilities: Provide commercialization consulting in the life sciences and
related industries.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: MVS Solutions, Inc.
Title: President & Founder
Dates of Service: June 01, 1999 - Present
Responsibilities: Providing technology commercialization and business
development to industry & government.



Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Kollodis BioSciences, Inc.
Title: President & Founder
Dates of Service: July 01, 2006 - Present
Responsibilities: Provide commercialization and business development
direction.

Name: Andrew Stumpf

Andrew Stumpf's current primary role is with Cadillac Casting, Inc. Andrew Stumpf
currently services 10 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and otfices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Financial Officer
Dates of Service: April 01, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Andrew is responsible for financial and strategic planning and
budgeting, financial reporting and year-end audit and tax filings. He currently
receives a salary compensation of $154K per year and owns 1.2% equity in the
company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Cadillac Casting, Inc
Title: VP Finance, Board Member
Dates of Service: January 02, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Corporate finance, financial and strategic planning, financial
reporting and vear-end audit and tax filings.

Other business experience in the past three years:

o Employer: Storm Lake Capital, LLC
Title: Partner
Dates of Service: October 01, 2007 - Present
Responsibilities: Transaction sourcing, due diligence, structuring and execution,
and portfolio company management.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplover: Air T, Inc.
Title: Board Member
Dates of Service: September 01, 2014 - November 23, 2019
Responsibilities: Served as Chairman of the Compensation Committee. Member
of the Nominating, Audit and Special Independent Committees.



Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplover: Rockwell Advisors, Inc.
Title: President
Dates of Service: October 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Merger & acquisition advisory

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

SciTech Development L.L.C. (the “Company™) has ambitious goals that inherently
subject it to many risks, and investors should be prepared to withstand a complete loss
of their investments. There is limited operating history with regard to these larger
goals upon which investors may base an evaluation of the Company’s performance;
therefore, it is subject to all the risks incident to the creation and development of a
new business. As of the Initial Closing of this offering, the Company has no revenues
and likely will not have revenues for several years. There can be no assurance that the
Company can realize its plans on the projected timetable in order to reach sustainable
or profitable operations. Any material deviation from the Company’s timetable could
require that the Company seek additional capital beyond what is currently
contemplated. There can be no assurance that such capital will be available at
reasonable cost, and if available it would likely dilute the investment of investors in
this Offering if it is obtained.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess
The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation



of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Restrictions on Transfer of Securities Upon conversion, investors will own
unregistered securities comprising a minority interest in a privately traded company.
The membership units (or shares, as the case may be) may not be transferable under
certain U.S. securities laws, which require registration or qualification. In such cases,
the subscribers desiring to dispose of the units must deliver to the Company an
opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Company to the effect that the proposed
disposition of the units will not violate the registration or qualification requirement of
any relevant securities law. Upon conversion, each investor must become a party to an
investors’ rights agreement or similar instrument which may provide that a member
seeking to sell his or her units must first offer them to the Company, and second to
other investors (as defined in the investors’ rights agreement or similar instrument),
each of which have the right of first refusal prior to the units being sold. Furthermore,
upon conversion, even if the Company and each investor consent to such sale, and it
is permitted by applicable securities law, the market will likely apply minority interest
and lack of liguidity discounts to such units, the result being a diminished return for
the investor. Additionally, the units will be subject to a bring-along right, so the
investor may be required to sell his or her units upon the vote of a supermajority.
Because of potential restrictions on transferability of membership units, and the fact
that no trading market exists or is expected to develop for the units, shareholders are
not likely to be able to liquidate their investments or pledge the units as security on a
loan in the event of an emergency. Thus, the units should be considered only as a
long-term investment. There can be no assurances that the Company will be able to
affect a public registration of its units, and the Company currently has no plans to
pursue public ownership. In order to effect value from a public offering, a suitable
underwriter must be located and a public market must be maintained following such
offering. Pursuant to the Investors’ Rights Agreement, in an initial public offering
existing shareholders are not permitted to sell their Shares in such an offering, and
will be required by the underwriter to “lock-up” their Shares for a period of time
thereafter.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

Upon conversion, investors will own unregistered securities comprising a minority
interest in a privately traded company. The membership units (or shares, as the case
may be) mav not be transferable under certain U.S. securities laws, which require
registration or qualification. In such cases, the subscribers desiring to dispose of the
units must deliver to the Company an opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Company
to the effect that the proposed disposition of the units will not violate the registration
or qualification requirement of any relevant securities law. Upon conversion, each
investor must become a party to an investors’ rights agreement or similar instrument
which may provide that a member seeking to sell his or her units must first offer them
to the Company, and second to other investors (as defined in the investors’ rights
agreement or similar instrument), each of which have the right of first refusal prior to
the units being sold. Furthermore, upon conversion, even if the Company and each



investor consent to such sale, and it is permitted by applicable securities law, the
market will likely apply minority interest and lack of liquidity discounts to such units,
the result being a diminished return for the investor. Additionally, the units will be
subject to a bring-along right, so the investor may be required to sell his or her units
upon the vote of a supermajority. Because of potential restrictions on transferability
of membership units, and the fact that no trading market exists or is expected to
develop for the units, shareholders are not likely to be able to liquidate the
investments or pledge the units as security on a loan in the event of an emergency.
Thus, the units should be considered only as a long-term investment. There can be no
assurances that the Company will be able to affect a public registration of its units,
and the Company currently has no plans to pursue public ownership. In order to effect
value from a public offering, a suitable underwriter must be located and a public
market must be maintained following such offering. Pursuant to the Investors’ Rights
Agreement, in an initial public offering existing shareholders are not permitted to sell
their Shares in such an offering, and will be required by the underwriter to “lock-up”
their Shares for a period of time thereafter. Best Efforts Offering The notes are offered
by the Company on a “best efforts” basis. No individual, firm, or corporation has
agreed in advance to purchase any of the offered notes. No assurance can be given
that any or all of the notes shall be sold.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

Limited Operating History; Limited Capital SciTech Development L.L.C. (the
“Company”) has ambitious goals that inherently subject it to many risks, and investors
should be prepared to withstand a complete loss of their investments. There is limited
operating history with regard to these larger goals upon which investors may base an
evaluation of the Company’s performance; therefore, it is subject to all the risks
incident to the creation and development of a new business. As of the Initial Closing
of this offering, the Company has no revenues and likely will not have revenues for
several years. There can be no assurance that the Company can realize its plans on the
projected timetable in order to reach sustainable or profitable operations. Any
material deviation from the Company’s timetable could require that the Company
seek additional capital beyond what is currently contemplated. There can be no
assurance that such capital will be available at reasonable cost, and if available it
would likely dilute the investment of investors in this Offering if it is obtained.

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
The Company anticipates that it will need to raise additional funds in the future to
meet its operational needs and implement its business and development objectives.
To grow and develop its products at the desired pace, the Company intends to raise
additional investment dollars following this Offering. There can be no assurances that
the Company will be able to obtain additional funding when needed, or that such
funding, if available, will be available on terms acceptable to the Company. In the
event that the Company’s operations do not generate sufficient cash flow, or the
Company cannot acquire additional funds if and when needed, the Company may be
forced to curtail or cease its activities which would likely result in the loss to investors
of all or a substantial portion of their investments.



Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in equity, debt, or preferred unit financings in the future,
which may reduce the value of your investment in the units. Interest on debt securities
could increase costs and negatively impact operating results. Preferred units could be
issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences, and
limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred units could be more
advantageous to those investors than to the holders of units. In addition, if we need to
raise more equity capital from the sale of units, institutional or other investors may
negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of your
investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

The Company intends to use the net proceeds of this Offering to cover its general
operating expenses prior to closing a larger Series A round. The Company may
allocate and use such proceeds differently and for other purposes not currently
anticipated. Management shall have broad discretion to determine how such proceeds
shall be used. As a result, the Company’s success will substantially depend on the
discretion and judgment of the Company’s management with respect to the
application and allocation of a substantial portion of the net proceeds of this Offering.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

This company’s business plans contain certain forward-looking statements regarding
the plans and objectives of management for future operations, including plans and
objectives relating to the development of the Company’s business. The forward-
looking statements included therein are based on current expectations that involve
numerous risks and uncertainties. The Company’s plans and objectives are based on a
successful execution of the Company’s business strategy and assumptions that the
Company shall be profitable, that the market for products or services shall not change
materially or adversely, and that there shall be no unanticipated material adverse
change in the Company’s operations or business. Assumptions relating to the
foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic,
competitive and market conditions and business decisions (most of which are beyond
the control of the Company), are difficult or impossible to predict accurately.
Although the Company believes that its assumptions underlying the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, any of the assumptions could prove inaccurate. As a result,
there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements made to prospective
investors shall prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent
in the forward-looking statements included therein, the inclusion of such information
should not be regarded as a representation by the Company or any other entity that
the objectives and plans of the Company shall be achieved.

We may never have an operational product or service

The success of a new player in a competitive marketplace is highly dependent on the
execution of the team, but also on things out of the team’s control, such as general
economic conditions and market and practitioner acceptance, which can be a critical
factor that is nearly impossible to predict. If medical practitioners do not appreciate,
accept and, ultimately, see value in the Company’s product(s), the Company will fail.



Even if the Company is successful, competitors are expected to challenge the
Company. And, as is the case with all businesses in any industry, the Company can be
sued at any time.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may
never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the
product is the result of a change in business model upon the Company’s making a
determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best
interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
The Company’s ability to remain competitive depends on its ability to develop new
and enhanced products and services and to introduce these products and services in a
timely and cost-effective manner. In addition, product and service introductions or
enhancements by the Company’s competitors or the use of other technologies could
cause a decline in sales or loss of market acceptance of the Company’s existing
products and services. The success of the Company in developing, introducing, selling
and supporting new and enhanced products or services depends upon a variety of
factors, including timely and efficient completion of service and product design and
development, and timely and efficient implementation of product and service
offerings. Because new product and service commitments may be made well in
advance of sales, new product or service decisions must anticipate changes in the
industries served. There can be no assurances that the Company will be successful in
selecting, developing, and marketing new products and services or in enhancing its
existing products or services, or successfully adopting and implementing the
technology necessary to remain competitive. Failure to do so successfully may
adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

The units that an investor is buying have no voting rights attached to them. This
means that you will have no rights in dictating on how the Company will be run. You
are trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that will
grow your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company,
you will only be paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the creditors of our
company have been paid out. Please see voting rights of securities sold in this offering
below.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds
The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating



needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will fail.
Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might
result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors
might get better terms.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

SciTech Development L.L.C. (the “Company”) has ambitious goals that inherently
subject it to many risks, and investors should be prepared to withstand a complete loss
of their investments. There is limited operating history with regard to these larger
goals upon which investors may base an evaluation of the Company’s performance;
therefore, it is subject to all the risks incident to the creation and development of a
new business. As of the Initial Closing of this offering, the Company has no revenues
and likely will not have revenues for several years. There can be no assurance that the
Company can realize its plans on the projected timetable in order to reach sustainable
or profitable operations. Any material deviation from the Company’s timetable could
require that the Company seek additional capital beyond what is currently
contemplated. There can be no assurance that such capital will be available at
reasonable cost, and if available it would likely dilute the investment of investors in
this Offering if it is obtained.

We are an early stage company and have [imited revenue and operating history
SciTech Development L.L.C. (the "Company”) has ambitious goals that inherently
subject it to many risks, and investors should be prepared to withstand a complete loss
of their investments. There is limited operating history with regard to these larger
goals upon which investors may base an evaluation of the Company’s performance;
therefore, it is subject to all the risks incident to the creation and development of a
new business. As of the Initial Closing of this offering, the Company has no revenues



and likely will not have revenues for several years. There can be no assurance that the
Company can realize its plans on the projected timetable in order to reach sustainable
or profitable operations. Any material deviation from the Company’s timetable could
require that the Company seek additional capital beyond what is currently
contemplated. There can be no assurance that such capital will be available at
reasonable cost, and if available it would likely dilute the investment of investors in
this Offering if it is obtained.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

The Company has already faced issues with certain patents that it has filed, or has
planned to file. Although some of these patent issues have been remedied, there is no
guarantee that issues with those patents and future patents may not arise. The
Company’s business heavily relies upon obtaining these patents and if the Company
cannot obtain these certain patents or the process to obtain patents proves to be
overly burdensome, it will severely impact the Company’s success.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

The Company’s ability to compete effectively with other companies could depend, in
part, on its ability to create and/or maintain the proprietary nature of its intellectual
property, e.g., patents, trademarks, and copyrights. The Company’s success will also
depend, in part, on its ability to obtain and/or enforce intellectual property protection
for these assets in the United States and in other countries. The Company in such
circumstances, may file applications for patents, copyrights and trademarks, as
management deems appropriate. There can be no assurances as to the degree of
protection offered by any intellectual property issued to or licensed by the Company.
There can be no assurances that competitors, some of whom have substantial
resources, will not seek to apply for and obtain patents that shall prevent, limit or
interfere with the Company’s ability to make and sell its products and or services. The
defense and prosecution of patent and trademark suits may be both costly and time
consuming even if the outcome is favorable to the Company. An adverse outcome
could subject the Company to significant liabilities to third parties, require disputed
rights to be licensed from third parties, or require the Company to cease selling
products. The Company will also rely on proprietary technology and there can be no
assurances that others may not independently develop the same or similar
technology, or otherwise obtain access to the Company’s proprietary technology.
There can be no assurances that confidentiality agreements entered into by the
Company’s employees and consultants, advisors and collaborators will provide
meaningful protection for the Company’s trade secrets, know-how or other
proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized use or disclosure of such
trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a



multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not
to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, vour investment in
the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

The Company is highly dependent on the services of its key personnel, including Earle
Holsapple, and the loss of his services would have an adverse effect on the future
operations of the Company. Under the Company’s Articles of Organization and
Operating Agreement, members have very limited powers in the day-to-day affairs of
the Company. Accordingly, no person should invest unless he or she is willing to
entrust most aspects of the management of the Company to the Manager and officers.
The Company will also likely depend on the efforts of other key personnel in the
future. The Company may not be able to secure long-term commitments from these
key personnel through employment or independent contractor agreements. As a
result, the Company may be at risk of losing such key personnel and may also be at
risk of liability arising from inadequately or incorrectly documented employment
relationships. If such loss or liability were to arise, it could threaten the Company’s
growth and operations.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

The Company may need to navigate regulatory approvals through various Federal
agencies, including obtaining FDA approval. Obtaining FDA approval alone can be
time consuming, costly, and unpredictable. While the Company can estimate such
costs and anticipate certain obstacles, it is impossible to predict what the Company
will face when obtaining FDA approval. Ultimately, the Company could fail to obtain
FDA approval for its products.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.



Unfavorable Outcome of Clinical Trials is Possible

If our clinical trials fail to demonstrate to the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities
that any of our products or product candidates are safe and effective for the treatment
of particular diseases, the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities may require us to
conduct additional clinical trials or may not grant us marketing approval for such
products or product candidates for those diseases.

Unfavorable Outcome of Clinical Trials Risk

If our clinical trials fail to demonstrate to the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities
that any of our products or product candidates are safe and effective for the treatment
of particular diseases, the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities may require us to
conduct additional clinical trials or may not grant us marketing approval for such
products or product candidates for those diseases.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members.

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Securities Type of Security
Member N P t
ember Name od ed ercentage
Earle T. Hol | .
HEI“ © 1. HOBAPPE, 10,238,173 Units 65.3%
Ralph Parchment 5,451,104 Units 34.7%
The Company'’s Securities

The Company has authorized 2016 Convertible Notes, 2018 Convertible Notes, 2019
Convertible Notes, 2020 Convertible Notes, and Units. As part of the Regulation
Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 1,818,181 of Units.

2016 Convertible Notes

The security will convert into Units and the terms of the 2016 Convertible Notes are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $165,000.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2019

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: 25.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Qualified Financing of at least $2,000,000

Material Rights

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000 before
the repayment of the Note, then the Note will convert to units equal to the
outstanding princial balance and any accrued interest divided by the conversion price.
The conversion price will be equal to the lessor of the i) price per unit paid by the
investors multiplied by the discount or ii) the price equal to the valuation cap divided
by the number of outstanding units.

Upon the occurrence of any Events of Default, the entire unpaid principal balance of

the Note and all accrued and unpaid interest hereunder shall become immediately due
and payable.

2018 Convertible Notes

The security will convert into Units and the terms of the 2018 Convertible Notes are
outlined below:




Amount outstanding: $85,000.00
Maturity Date: December 31, 2020
Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: 25.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Qualified Financing of at least $2,000,000

Material Rights

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000 before
the repayment of the Note, then the Note will convert to units equal to the
outstanding princial balance and any accrued interest divided by the conversion price.
The conversion price will be equal to the lessor of the i) price per unit paid by the
investors multiplied by the discount or ii) the price equal to the valuation cap divided
by the number of outstanding units.

Upon the occurrence of any Events of Default, the entire unpaid principal balance of
the Note and all accrued and unpaid interest hereunder shall become immediately due
and pavyable.

2019 Convertible Notes

The security will convert into Units and the terms of the 2019 Convertible Notes are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $250,000.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2021

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: 25.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Qualified Financing of at least $2,000,000

Material Rights

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000 before
the repayment of the Note, then the Note will convert to units equal to the
outstanding princial balance and any accrued interest divided by the conversion price.
The conversion price will be equal to the lessor of the i) price per unit paid by the
investors multiplied by the discount or ii) the price equal to the valuation cap divided
by the number of outstanding units.

Upon an Event of Default, at the option of the Requisite Holders, the Note shall
accelerate and all principal and accrued interest shall be due and pavyable.

2020 Convertible Notes

The security will convert into Units and the terms of the 2020 Convertible Notes are
outlined below:



Amount outstanding: $310,332.19

Maturity Date: December 31, 2023

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: 25.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Qualified Financing of at least $2,000,000

Material Rights

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000 before
the repayment of the Note, then the Note will convert to units equal to the
outstanding princial balance and any accrued interest divided by the conversion price.
The conversion price will be equal to the lessor of the i) price per unit paid by the
investors multiplied by the discount or ii) the price equal to the valuation cap divided
by the number of outstanding units.

In the Event of Default, at the option of the Requisite Holder, the Note shall accelerate
and all principal and unpaid accrued interest shall become due and pavyable.

Units

The amount of security authorized is 23,246,651 with a total of 23,246,651
outstanding.

Voting Rights
There are no voting rights associated with Units.
Material Rights

The amount of units oustanding includes 2,359,170 units to be issued pursuant to
outstanding warrants.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of the company, you will have no voting rights in regards to the
corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities,
company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or
company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional units. In other words,
when the company issues more units, the percentage of the company that vou own
will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of units outstanding could



result from a unit offering (such as an initial public offering, another crowdfunding
round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees exercising options, or
by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred units or
warrants) into units.

If the company decides to issue more units, an investor could experience value
dilution, with each unit being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the
total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per unit (though this typically occurs
only if the company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e |nan [PO;
¢ To the company;
* To an accredited investor; and

¢ To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $165,000.00
Use of proceeds: Research and development
Date: December 08, 2016
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $85,000.00
Use of proceeds: Research and development
Date: August 14, 2018
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $250,000.00
Use of proceeds: R&D, manufacture drug compound, and general operating
expenses
Date: July 31, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)



e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $310,332.19
Use of proceeds: Translational research, general operations
Date: May 22, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

SciTech Development has functioned as a lean, virtual organization. In 2019 and 2020
the Company conducted research, testing and development and obtained regulatory
approvals in preparation to enter into a Phase 1 clinical trial of ST-001
nanoFenretinide for the treatment of lymphoma.

Revenue

SciTech Development is a pre-revenue clinical stage specialty pharmaceutical

company that has not yet reached commercialization of its lead drug candidate and as
such did not generate revenue in 2019 or 2020.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes research costs, consulting fees and subcontractor costs to
support and advance the development of the company and to prepare the
documentation required to obtain regulatory approvals. In 2020, cost of sales was
$352,742, representing an increase of $112,092, or 46.6% from 2019. In 2019, SciTech
received Investigational New Drug (IND) approval by the FDA to enter the clinic for
the treatment of lymphoma (IND No. 135475). In 2020, SciTech received Institutional
Review Board (IRB) approval to initiate its ST-001 nanoFenretinide clinical trial at the
Rush University Medical Center.

General and administrative expenses



General and administrative expenses decreased by 57.3% from $66,686 to $28,485
from 2019 to 2020 primarily driven by reduced costs for travel and events to
conferences and investor presentations. Given the global pandemic, travel to in-
person conferences and meeings was significantly curtailed in lieu of online video
attendance.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the clinical stage and is pre-revenue. As such, we are of
the opinion that the historical cash flows, which were generated primarily from
investments in the form of convertible notes, will not be indicative of future cash
flows. As SciTech enters clinical trial with its lead drug candidate, the amount of
capital investment and cash expenditures required will ramp significantly. SciTech’s
immediate goal is to complete its planned Phase 1a/1b clinical trial after which time it
plans to develop strategic partnerships with larger pharmaceutical companies with
the resources to sell and market the drug.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of October 31, 2021, the Company has $97,626 of cash on hand and nonbinding
letters of intent for an additional $2.0 million of investment.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

While funds from this campaign are not critical to SciTech's operations, they are very
important to expedite commencement of clinical trials. Other capital resources are
available in addition to the funds raised from this Regulation Crowdfunding
campaign.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are not necessary to the viability of the
Company. Of the total Company funds on hand coupled with the funds under LOI, it is
anticipated that approximately 40% will be made up of funds raised from the
crowdfunding campaign, if it raises $1,500,000.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?



If the Company raises the minimum offering amount only, we anticipate the Company
will be able to operate for approximately six months based on current resources and
funding commitments. If only the minimum offering amount is raised, the Company
would defer the commencment of the clinical trial and not incur the associated costs.
$1.5 million of funding (from any source) is estimated to complete the first milestone
in the clinical trial.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for 15 months after entering clinical trial. This is based on a current
plan to conduct a second clinical trial predicated on successes within the first trial.
Monthly expenditures are expected to average $425 thousand for expenses related to
the cost of drug supply, clinical trials, salaries and general and administrative
expenses.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Currently, the Company is in discussions with private investors for additional future
sources of capital the terms of which continue to be negotiated.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Mariom Gibbons - 2016 Notes
Amount Owed: $62,953.42
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2019
If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

e Creditor: Ayad Al-Katib - 2016 Notes
Amount Owed: $62,953.42
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2019
If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

e Creditor: Michael Burns - 2016 Notes
Amount Owed: $31,472.60



Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2019

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

Creditor: Kathryn Gibbons - 2016 Notes

Amount Owed: $18,881.10

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2019

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

Creditor: SLC Farms, LLC - 2016 Notes

Amount Owed: $31,098.63

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2019

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

Creditor: Marion Gibbons - 2018 Notes

Amount Owed: $11,430.14

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: December 18, 2020

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

Creditor: Ayad Al-Katib - 2018 Notes

Amount Owed: $28,998.63

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: December 30, 2020

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

Creditor: SLC Farms, LLC - 2018 Notes

Amount Owed: $57,767.12

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2020

If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.



¢ Creditor: Nano Investments, LLC - 2019 Notes
Amount Owed: $255,667.12
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2021
If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

® Creditor: Andrew Stumpf - 2019 Notes
Amount Owed: $16,279.73
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2021
If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000

before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

e Creditor: National Foundation for Cancer Research, Inc. - 2020 Notes
Amount Owed: $269,618.56
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2025
If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

e Creditor: AIM-HI Accelerator Fund, Inc. - 2020 Notes
Amount Owed: $51,783.56
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2023
If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least $2,000,000
before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal balance and
any accrued interest will convert to equity.

Related Party Transactions

¢ Name of Entity: Andrew Stumpf
Relationship to Company: Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Andrew Stumpf invested $15,000
in the company in the form of an unsecured convertible promissory note on
7/31/19. Andrew has also received units and warrants in the company for his
service.
Material Terms: The note accrues annual interest at 6% with a maturity date of
12/31/21. If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least
$2,000,000 before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal
balance and any accrued interest will convert to equity.



Name of Entity: Earle T. Holsapple III

Relationship to Company: 20%+ Owner

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Earle is a unit holder and serves
as a consultant to the company.

Material Terms: Earle was paid $75,000 in 2020 for professional services and
reimbursement of expenses.

Name of Entity: Louis Scarmoutzos

Relationship to Company: Officer

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Lou is a unit holder serves as a
consultant to the company.

Material Terms: Lou was paid $45,000 for consulting services and
reimbursement of expenses in 2020.

Name of Entity: Michael Young

Relationship to Company: Unit holder and Consultant

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Michael is a unit holder serves as
a consultant to the company.

Material Terms: Michael was paid $35,487 for consulting services and
reimbursement of expenses in 2020.

Name of Entity: Brian Leyland Jones

Relationship to Company: Unit holder and former Consultant

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Brian previously served as a
consultant to the company.

Material Terms: Brian was paid $10,500 for consulting services and
reimbursement of expenses in 2020.

Name of Entity: Christine Copple

Relationship to Company: Unit holder and Consultant

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Christine is a unit holder and
serves as a consultant to the company.

Material Terms: Christine was paid $2,500 for consulting services in 2020.

Name of Entity: BD/M Collective

Names of 20% owners: Phil Robertson, Lori Kavle

Relationship to Company: Unit holder and Consultant

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: BD/M is a unit holder and serves
as a consultant to the company.

Material Terms: BD/M has received $20,000 in consulting fees in 2020 and is a
unit holder.

Name of Entity: Ayad Al-Katib

Relationship to Company: Unit and note holder, previously served as a
consultant to the company

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Ayad Al-Katib invested $50,000 in



the company in the form of an unsecured convertible promissory notes in 2016
and invested $25,000 in the form of an unsecured convertible promissory note in
2018. Ayad has also received units and warrants in the company for his service.
Ayad is not currently engaged in a service agreement with the company.
Material Terms: The 2016 notes accrue annual interest at 6% with a maturity
date of 12/31/19. The 2018 notes accrue annual interest at 6% with a maturity
date of 12/31/20. If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at
least $2,000,000 before the repayment of the notes, then the outstanding
principal balance and any accrued interest will convert to equity.

¢ Name of Entity: Michael Burns
Relationship to Company: Unit and note holder, serves as a consultant to the
company
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Michael Burns invested $25,000 in
the company in the form of an unsecured convertible promissory notes in 2016 .
Michael has also received units and warrants in the company for his service as a
consultant.
Material Terms: The note accrues annual interest at 6% with a maturity date of
12/31/19. If the company sells equity resulting in gross proceeds of at least
$2,000,000 before the repayment of the Note, then the outstanding principal
balance and any accrued interest will convert to equity.

Valuation
Pre-Money Valuation: $63,928,290.25

Valuation Details:

The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal-third party independent
evaluation.

A market approach was utilized to determine the company's pre-money valuation,
whereby the price, terms and conditions of transactions involving comparable
companies were analyzed. One comparable company, Trillium Therapeutics, Inc.
(TSX:TRIL) had very similar characteristics and attributes with respect to its targeted
cancer therapies and stage of advancement (pre-phase 1 with FDA IND and orphaned
drug designation) at the time of its January 2020 public share offering. A comparison
of the two primary assets showed the superiority of SciTech’s fenretinide-based drug
compound versus Trillium’s lead asset.

The pre-money valuation derived from the Trillium transaction was $128 million for
100% of its equity value. Empirical studies suggest that valuations of private
companies are 30% to 50% lower than their similarly publicly traded counterparts due
to increased investment risk resulting from size and illiquidity, given the lack of access
to a public market exchange. As such, management applied a 50% private company
discount and concluded its equity valuation to be $64 million.



Management believes this valuation is well supported given that the January 2020
Trillium shareholder recapitalization demonstrates that previously failed assets can
gain investor confidence with strong and relevant data. Moreover, the valuation is
bolstered by FDA guidance of a quick path to commercialization.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this
calculation the company has assumed all warrants with a right to acquire units are
exercised.

The company currently only has one outstanding class of units and does not have any
options outstanding.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities
currently outstanding. The Company currently only has one outstanding class of units
and has 2,559, 170 units outstanding pursuant to warrants. Please refer to the
Company Securities section of the Offering Memorandum for further details regarding
current outstanding convertible securities which may affect your ownership in the
future.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

e StartEngine Retainer
96.5%
$9,999 will be used to fund StartEngine's retainer. This is a requirement of
StartEngine.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $4,999,997.75, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

e (Contingency Costs
8.7%
Contingency costs reflect uncertainty as to the precise cost of all items in the
estimated budget. Potential additional contingent costs that could be incurred
include those related to the manufacture of the drug and the clinical trial costs.

e Capital Raise and Related Fees
9.6%
Capital Raise and Related Fees reflect legal, regulatory and financial fees
associated with the company’s capital raise efforts. These fees will vary based on
the amount of capital raised.



® Salaries, General & Administrative
31.6%
Proceeds related to Salaries, General & Administrative (SG&A) will be used for
the salaries required for the company to conduct the manufacture of drug and to
manage the clinical trials. Other general and administrative costs such as lab,
equipment rental and other office expenses are included in this category.

e (Cost of Drugs
19.0%
Proceeds for the Cost of Drugs includes raw material costs and drug manufacture
under strict cGMP conditions. Other costs in this category include validation and
testing along with regulatory filings, labor, & packaging.

e (Cost of Clinical Trials
27.6%
The costs associated with conducting the clinical trials include patient
enrollment costs, patient costs, testing, regulatory requirements, drug logistics
and clinical trial site costs. Clinical trial site costs also include principal
investigator, research nurse and data coordination expenses.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at SciTechSDP.com
(https://www.scitechdevelopment.com/investor-relations ).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;



(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at:
www.startengine.com/scitechdevelopment

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.



EXHIBIT B TO FORM C

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR SCITECH
DEVELOPMENT L.L.C.

[See attached]
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December 2, 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

SciTech Development, LLC
Grosse Pointe Farms, Michigan

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SciTech Development, LLC (a limited hability
company), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of income
and comprehensive income, changes in members” equity, and cash flows for the vears then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of SciTech Development, LLC as of December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and 1ts
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of SciTech
Development, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SciTech Development LLC’s ability
to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of matenial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opmion on the
effectiveness of SciTech Development, LLC s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 1s
expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e (Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about SciTech Development, LLC’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amount other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

BAIRD, COTTER AND BISHOP, P.C.

Baind.,Cottio 4 Biokap, PC.



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2019

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 5 370,223
Non-Current Assets
Deferred Tax Assets 123,307
TOTAL ASSETS S 493,530
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 5 26,903
Long-Term Liabilities
Accrued Independent Contractors 471,618
Accrued Expenses 87,672
Accrued Interest 50,896
MNotes Payable 750,000
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1.360,186
Total Liabilities 1,387,089
Members' Equity (Deficit)
Membership Units 1,434
Retained (Deficit) (894,993)
Total Members' Equity (Deficit) (893,559)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 5 493,530

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCITECH DEVELOPMENT. LLC

GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Sales

Cost of Sales
Research Costs
Consulting Fees
Sub Contractors
Other Costs

Total Cost of Sales

Gross Profit (Loss)

General and Administrative Expenses

Rent

Meals

Travel & Events

Insurance

Phone, Software & Internet

Licenses

Office Expense

Bank Fees

Miscellaneous Expense

Total General and Administrative Expenses
MNet Operating Income (Loss)

Other Income (Expense)

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Total Other Income (Expense)
Net Income (Loss) Before Tax
Deferred Income Tax (Expense) Benefit
MNet Income (Loss) After Tax

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Total Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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4,646
24,782
198,389
12,833

240,650

(240,650)

6,480
3,506
48,072
2,477
4,085
50

602
9635
449

66,686

(307,336)

2,146
(25,382)

(23,236)

(330,572)

54,405

(276,167)

0

$

(276,167)



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC

GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

BALANCE - January 1, 2019
Income (Loss)
Units Issued

BALANCE - December 31, 2019

MEMBERSHIP RETAINED
UNITS (DEFICIT) TOTAL

$ 1292 § (618.826) $  (617.534)
0 (276,167) (276,167)

142 0 142

$ 1,434 § (894,993) S (893,559

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
MNet Income (Loss) h
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Deferred Income Taxes
Increase (Decrease) in
Accounts Payable
Accrued Independent Contractors
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Interest

(276,167)

(54,405)

(41,343)

102,868
81,664
25,382

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

(162,001)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Expenses Paid in Equity

500,000
142

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

500,142

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year

338,141

32,082

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year b

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6
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SCITECH DEVELOPMENT. LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company was established in 2000 for the purpose of engaging in scientific, engineering, medical and
related research; creating and developing intellectual property as a result of such research; developing,
producing, and marketing products for medical, health-care, engineering, or other commercial or non-
commercial purposes; and engaging in all matters incidental or related thereto. or resulting therefrom.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP).

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market on the first-in first-out basis. There was no material
inventory at December 31, 2019,

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents on the statement of cash flows.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain amounts and disclosures,
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

SciTech Development, LLC is taxed as a corporation, which causes them to recognize deferred tax
assets and habilities based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and
the respective tax basis of their assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using current enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which they expect
the temporary differences to reverse.

NOTE B - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are no related party accounts receivable at December 31, 2019, All other related party transactions are as

follows.

During the year, SciTech Development, LLC made various payments to some of the members for work performed
as well as reimbursed expenses, the total of these payments are listed below:

Member Amount Paid Description of Payments

Earle Holsapple $ 30,000 Consulting Fees

Louis Scarmoutzos 30.045 Consulting Fees & Reimbursements
Donald Zinn 9,477 Consulting Fees & Reimbursements
Christine Copple 5,700 Consulting Fees & Reimbursements



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT. LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Due to the nature of the company, there are large balances due to members for accrued contracted labor, accrued
reimbursable expenses, and notes payable. These balances are listed as follows:

Accrued Accrued Reimbursable Notes Total Due to
Member Contracted Labor Expenses Pavable Member

Earle Holsapple b 418,750 b 10,000 b 0 § 428,750
Ralph Parchment W 8,875 0 8.875
Avad Al-Katib 0 0 75,000 75,000
Michael Burns 0 0 25,000 25,000
Louis Scarmoutzos 0 551 0 551
Andrew Stumpf 0 () 15,000 15,000
Donald Zinn 20,524 0 0 20,524

NOTE C — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. In the case of deposits, this 1s the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the entity’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of December 31, 2019, $369.875 of SciTech Development
LLC’s bank balance of $370,223 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and
uncollateralized.

Concentration of credit risk. SciTech Development, LLC will minimize Concentration of Credit Risk, which
is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Company’s investment in a single 1ssuer, by diversifying
the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be
minimized.

Fair Market Value Disclosure — SciTech Development, LLC 15 required to disclose amounts within a
framework established for measuring fanr value, That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical securities.

Level 2: Prices determined using other significant observable inputs. Observable inputs are inputs that
reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing a security and are developed based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. These may include quoted prices
[rom similar activities, terest rates, prepayment speeds, credit sk, and others. Debt securities are valued
in accordance with evaluated bid price supplhied by the pricing service and generally categorized as Level
2 in the hierarchy. Securities that are categorized as Level 2 in the hierarchy include, but are not limited
to, repurchase agreements, U.S. government agency securities, corporate securities, and commercial

paper.



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT. LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Level 3: Prices determined using significant unobservable inputs. In situations where quoted prices or
observable inputs are unavailable or deemed less relevant (for example, when there 1s little or no market
activity for an investment at the end of the period), unobservable inputs may be used. Unobservable inputs
reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the factors market participants would use in pricing
the security and would be based on the best information available under the circumstances.

The asset or lability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy 1s based on the lowest
level of any nput that 1s significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable mputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There are two types of
valuation techniques most commonly used and vary depending on the level of investment. These two
technigques are the market approach and income approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by the market transactions involving identical or similar assets and liabilities. The
income approach discounts future amounts to a single current amount and the discount rate used in the process
should reflect current market expectations about risks associated with those future cash flows.

SciTech Development LLC does not have any investments that are subject to fair value disclosure,

The carrying amount of deposits is as follows:

Total
Deposits b 370,223
The above amounts are reported in the financial statements as follows:
Total
Cash & Cash Equivalents b 370,223

NOTE D - INCOME TAXES

As a result of prior and current operating losses, SciTech Development, LLC recognizes deferred income tax
assets on carried forward net operating loss, or “NOL,” carryforwards for federal and state income tax
purposes. The ability to utilize the NOL carryforwards to reduce income in future vears is evaluated on an
annual basis. An NOL can benefit a company by reducing taxable income in future tax years.

The Company’s provision for income taxes for 2019 consist of the following:

Total
Current Tax Expense b 0
Deferred Tax (Expense) Benefit 54,405
A 54,405



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT. LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT

At December 31, 2019, SciTech Development LLC, had outstanding convertible notes totaling $750,000. The
estimated annual requirement for principal and accrued interest payments is:

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total
December 31, 2020 $ 85000 § 8,082 5 93082
December 31, 2021 250,000 6,906 256,906
December 31, 2022 0 0 ]
December 31, 2023 250,000 3476 253,476
Unknown 165,000 32,432 197.432

5 750,000 % 50,896 5§ 800,896

Interest expense for the year was 525,382,

The outstanding convertible notes consist of the following 1ssues:

2016 NOTES

L.

During 2016, SciTech Development, LLC issued $165,000 worth of 6% interest unsecured convertible
promissory notes, convertible into membership units. The notes are convertible at the option of the holders
with the following terms:

If at any time the company consummates a financing for the sale of equity in which the gross offering
proceeds to the company are at least two million dollars, and the financing structure incorporates
reasonable customary terms for equity financing, then, the outstanding principal and accrued interest
will automatically convert into units.

If the subscriber has invested, in total, less than $50,000, the conversion price for their notes in a
qualified financing will be equal to 90% of the per unit price paid by the purchasers of such
membership units in the qualified financing.

If the subscriber has invested, in total, between $50,000 and $100,000, the conversion price for their
notes in a qualified financing will be equal to 87.5% of the per unit price paid by the purchasers of
such membership units in the qualified financing.

If the subscriber has invested, n total, more than $100,000, the conversion price for their notes in a
qualified financing will be equal to 85% of the per unit price paid by the purchasers of such equity
sccurities in the qualified financing.

The conversion price 1s subject to adjustment to reflect distributions and similar events as determined by
the company’s manager. The automatic conversion of the notes into membership units will be deemed to
occur as of the date of closing the qualified financing, or the date of the first closing in a series of closings
constituting qualified financing,

10



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT. LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

The maturity date of the 2016 notes 15 December 31, 2019, and although, the notes have reached their
maturity, none of the note holders have demanded repayment of principal and accrued interest for these
notes. In consideration for this, SciTech Development, LLC has continued to accrue interest at the stated
terms beyond the maturity date in these instances.

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total

Unknown $ 165,000 S 32432 $ 197432

2018 NOTES

2. During 2018, SciTech Development, LLC issued $85,000 worth of 6% interest unsecured convertible
promissory notes, convertible into membership units. The notes are convertible at the option of the holders
with the following terms:

e Ifat any time the company consummates a financing for the sale of equity in which the gross offering
proceeds to the company are at least two million dollars, and the financing structure incorporates
reasonable customary terms for equity financing, then, the outstanding principal and accrued interest
will automatically convert into units.

e [l a qualified financing has not occurred prior to the maturity date, then the company may elect, upon
notice of such election to convert any outstanding balance into membership units. The conversion
price per unit shall be equal to the quotient of $10,000,000 divided by the aggregate number of
outstanding membership units as of the maturity date.

The outstanding principal amount of the note, together with accrued but unpaid interest, will be due and
payable, unless otherwise converted into units of the company by the note holder, pursuant to the maturity
date of December 31, 2020.

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total

December 31, 2020 $ 85000 S 8,082 § 93,082

2019 NOTES

3. During 2019, SciTech Development, LLC 1ssued $250,000 worth of 6% interest unsecured convertible
promissory notes, convertible into membership units. The notes are convertible at the option of the holders
at a conversion rate based on the qualified financing closing.

e It the subscriber has invested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes no later than 180 days from the date of the subscriber’s
note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 25% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering,

11



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT. LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

e [f the subscriber has mvested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes between 181 days and 360 days from the date of the
subscriber’s note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 50% of the amount
invested by the subscriber in this offering.

e [f the subscriber has mvested, n total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the gqualified financing closes more than 360 days from the date of the subscriber’s
note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 100% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering.

e In addition to abowve, if the subscriber has invested, in total, greater than $100,000 pursuant to this
purchase agreement, then the subscriber will receive concurrently with qualified financing close a
warrant in an amount equal to 100% of the amount invested that exceeds $100,000 by the subscriber
in this offering. Each warrant will have a three-year term from the date of granting and an exercise
price equal to 80% of the per unit price paid by the qualified financing investors.

The outstanding principal amount of the note, together with accrued but unpaid interest, will be due and
payable, unless otherwise converted into units of the company by the note holder, pursuant to the maturity
date of December 31, 2021.

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total

December 31, 2021 $ 250,000 S 6,906 § 256,906

SciTech Development, LLC also issued $250,000 worth of 7% interest unsecured convertible promissory
notes. The $250,000 was originally 1ssued as a 7% convertible translation research grant that could be
converted to a convertible note, this grant would be due at the time that the translation research was
deemed successful. The translation research grant was converted into a convertible note in 2020, this was
recognized in 2019 and the financial statements were impacted for this change, see note H for more
information. The note is convertible at the option of the holders at a conversion rate based on the qualified
financing closing,

e If the subscriber has invested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes no later than 180 days from the date of the subscriber’s
note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 25% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering.

e If the subscriber has invested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes between 181 days and 360 days from the date of the
subscriber’s note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 50% of the amount
invested by the subscriber in this offering.

12



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT. LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

e [f the subscriber has mvested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the gqualified financing closes more than 360 days from the date of the subscriber’s
note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 100% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering.

e In addition to abowve, if the subscriber has invested, in total, greater than $100,000 pursuant to this
purchase agreement, then the subscriber will receive concurrently with qualified financing close a
warrant in an amount equal to 100% of the amount invested that exceeds $100,000 by the subscriber
in this offering. Each warrant will have a three-year term from the date of granting and an exercise
price equal to 80% of the per unit price paid by the qualified financing investors.

The outstanding principal amount of the note, together with accrued but unpaid interest, will be due and
pavable, unless otherwise converted into units of the company by the note holder, pursuant to the maturity

date of December 31, 2023,

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total

December 31, 2023 $ 250,000 % 3476 5 253476

NOTE F — RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development costs are charged to operations when incurred and are included in operating
expenses. The amount charged in 2019 was $240,650.

NOTE G - MEMBERS™ EQUITY

As of December 31, 2019, SciTech Development, LLC had authorized 1,433,886 units, all of which are
issued and outstanding. During the year, there were 141,558 units authorized and issued. all of which are
still outstanding.

In addition to the units above, SciTech Development, LLC has 107,504 outstanding warrants which
represent the right, but not the obligation, to purchase units of SciTech Development, LLC,

NOTE H - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 2, 2021, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

After the close of the year, SciTech Development, LLC converted the outstanding convertible grant to

convertible debt. The financial statements for the yvear ending December 31, 2019 reflect this change. See
note E for additional information.
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December 2, 2021

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
AT AUDIT CONCLUSION

To Management

SciTech Development, LLC
281 Kercheval Avenue

Grosse Pointe Farms, M1 48236

We have audited the financial statements of SciTech Development, LLC for the year ended December 31,
2019, and we will issue our report thereon dated December 2, 2021. Professional standards require that
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards,
as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated
such information in our letter to you dated November 11, 2021, Professional standards also require that
we communicate to vou the following information related to our audit,

Significant Audit Findings

Clualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

You are responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by SciTech Development, LLC are described in Note A to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2019. We noted no transactions entered into by SciTech Development, LLC during the
year for which there 1s a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have
been recognized in the financial statements 1n the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements and are based on your knowledge and
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit,



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. You have
corrected all such misstatements.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 2, 2021,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountant

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion™ on certain situations. If'a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to SciTech Development, LLC’s financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each vear prior to retention as SciTech Development, LLC’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the members and management of SciTech Development,
LLC and 15 not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

BAIRD, COTTER AND BISHOP, P.C.

B, Cstie ¢ Bishop, VC.
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December 7, 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

SciTech Development, LLC
Grosse Pointe Farms, Michigan

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SciTech Development, LLC (a Michigan
corporation), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2020, and the related statements of
income and comprehensive income, changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of SciTech Development, LLC as of December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and 1ts
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of SciTech
Development, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SciTech Development LLC’s ability
to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of matenial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opmion on the
effectiveness of SciTech Development, LLC s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 1s
expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e (Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about SciTech Development, LLC’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amount other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

BAIRD, COTTER AND BISHOP, P.C.

Baind.,Cottio 4 Biokap, PC.



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Deferred Tax Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Accrued Independent Contractors
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Interest
Notes Payable
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Members' Equity ( Deficit)
Membership Units
Retained (Deficit)
Total Members' Equity (Deficit)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3

$ 133,834

133,834

193,514

193,514

$ 327348

$ 10,425

10,425

576,149
92,814
88.572

810,332

1,567,867

1,578,292

1,691
(1,252,635)

(1,250,944)

S 327348



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Sales 5 0
Cost of Sales
Research Costs 2.240
Consulting Fees 43,928
Sub Contractors 285,300
Other Costs 21,274
Total Cost of Sales 352.742
Gross Profit (Loss) (352,742)
General and Administrative Expenses
Rent 2.647
Meals 502
Travel & Events 10,723
Insurance 1,903
Phone, Software & Internet 4. 833
Office Expense 1,485
Bank Fees 2,802
Miscellaneous Expense 3,500
Total General and Administrative Expenses 28,485
Net Operating Income (Loss) (381.227)
Other Income (Expense)
Interest Income 1.386
Interest Expense (48,008)
Total Other Income (Expense) (46,622)
Net Income (Loss) Before Tax (427,849)
Deferred Income Tax (Expense) Benefit 70,207
Met Income (Loss) After Tax (357.642)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 0
Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) b (357.642)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

MEMBERSHIP RETAINED

UNITS (DEFICIT) TOTAL
BALANCE - January 1., 2020 $ 1,434 § (894,993) §  (893,559)
Income (Loss) 0 (357.,642) (357,642)
Units Issued 257 0 257
BALANCE - December 31, 2020 $ 1,691 § (1.252.635) $ (1,250,944)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income (Loss) (357,642)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Deferred Income Taxes (70,207)
Increase (Decrease) in
Accounts Payable (16,478)
Accrued Independent Contractors 104,531
Accrued Expenses 15,474
Accrued Interest 37,676
MNet Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (286,646)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 50,000
Expenses Paid in Equity 257
MNet Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 50,257
Met Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (236,389)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 370,223
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 133,834

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE A -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company was established in 2000 for the purpose of engaging in scientific, engineering, medical and
related research; creating and developing intellectual property as a result of such research; developing,
producing, and marketing products for medical, health-care, engineering, or other commercial or non-
commercial purposes; and engaging in all matters incidental or related thereto, or resulting therefrom.

1.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. genecrally accepted accounting

principles (GAAP).

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market on the first-in first-out basis. There was no material
inventory at December 31, 2020,

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents on the statement of cash flows.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

SciTech Development, LLC is taxed as a corporation, which causes them to recognize deferred tax
assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and
the respective tax basis of their assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using current enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which they expect
the temporary differences to reverse.

NOTE B — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are no related party accounts receivable at December 31, 2020. All other related party transactions are
as follows.

During the year, SciTech Development, LLC made various payments to some of the members for work
performed as well as reimbursed expenses, the total of these payments are listed below:

Member Amount Paid Description of Payments

Earle Holsapple $ 75,000 Consulting Fees & Reimbursements
Louis Scarmoutzos 45,000  Consulting Fees

BD.M Collective 20,000  Consulting Fees

Michael Young 35487 Consulting Fees & Reimbursements
Brian Layland Jones 10,500  Consulting Fees

Christine Copple 2,500 Consulting Fees



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Due to the nature of the company, there are large balances due to members for accrued contracted labor,
accrued reimbursable expenses, and notes payable. These balances are listed as follows:

Accrued Contracted Accrued Reimbrusable Notes Total Due to
Member Labor Expenses Payable Member

Earle Holsapple b 433.750 b 15.000 i) 0 $ 448,750
Ralph Parchment 0 9.017 () 9.017
Avad Al-Katib 0 0 75,000 75,000
Michael Burns 0 0 25,000 25,000
Louis Scarmoutzos 0 551 0 551
Andrew Stumpf 0 0 15,000 15,000
Donald Zinn 20,524 0 0 20,524
Michael Young 46,875 0 0 46,875
Brian Layland Jones 35,000 0 i 35,000
BIDYM Collective 235,000 0 0 25,000

NOTE C — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the entity’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of December 31, 2020, $133.566 of SciTech Development
LLC’s bank balance of $133,834 was exposed to custodial credit nisk because 1t was uninsured and
uncollateralized.

Concentration of credit risk. SciTech Development, LLC will minimize Concentration of Credit Risk, which
is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Company’s investment in a single issuer, by diversifying
the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be
minimized.

Fair Market Value Disclosure — SciTech Development, LLC is required to disclose amounts within a
framework established for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements)
and the lowest priority to unobservable mputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical securities.

Level 2: Prices determined using other significant observable inputs. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect
the assumptions market participants would use in pricing a security and are developed based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. These may include quoted prices from similar
activities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, and others. Debt securities are valued in accordance
with evaluated bid price supplied by the pricing service and generally categorized as Level 2 in the hierarchy.
Securities that are categorized as Level 2 in the hierarchy include, but are not limited to, repurchase
agreements, U.S. government agency securities, corporate securities, and commercial paper.

8



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Level 3: Prices determined using significant unobservable inputs. In situations where quoted prices or
observable mputs are unavailable or deemed less relevant (for example, when there 15 hittle or no market
activity for an investment at the end of the period). unobservable inputs may be used. Unobservable inputs
reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the factors market participants would use in pricing the
security and would be based on the best information available under the circumstances.

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable imputs and minimize the use of unobservable mputs. There are two types of
valuation techniques most commonly used and vary depending on the level of investment. These two
techniques are the market approach and income approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by the market transactions involving identical or similar assets and liabilities. The
income approach discounts future amounts to a single current amount and the discount rate used in the process
should reflect current market expectations about risks associated with those future cash flows.

SciTech Development LLC does not have any investments that are subject to fair value disclosure,

The carrying amount of deposits is as follows:

Total
Deposits 5 133,834
The above amounts are reported in the financial statements as follows:
Total
Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 133,834

NOTE D - INCOME TAXES

As a result of prior and current operating losses, SciTech Development, LLC recognizes deferred mcome tax
assets on carried forward net operating loss, or “NOL.,” carryforwards for federal and state income tax
purposes. The ability to utilize the NOL carryforwards to reduce income in future years is evaluated on an
annual basis. An NOL can benefit a company by reducing taxable income in future tax years.

The Company’s provision for income taxes for 2020 consist of the following:

Total
Current Tax Expense b 0
Deferred Tax (Expense) Benefit 70,207
b 70,207




SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE E —~ LONG-TERM DEBT

At December 31, 2020, SciTech Development LLC, had outstanding convertible notes totaling $810,332. The
estimated annual requirement for principal and accrued interest payments 1s:

Year Ended Principal Accrued Interest Total
December 31, 2021 $ 250,000 § 21,947 % 271,947
December 31, 2022 0 0 0
December 31, 2023 310,332 11,070 321,402
Unknown 250,000 33,555 305,555

$ 810332 S 88.572 $ 898.904

Interest expense for the year was $48,008,

The outstanding convertible notes consist of the following issues:

2016 NOTES

1.

During 2016, SciTech Development, LLC issued $165,000 worth of 6% interest unsecured convertible
promissory notes, convertible into membership units. The notes are convertible at the option of the holders
with the following terms:

If at any time the company consummates a financing for the sale of equity in which the gross offering
proceeds to the company are at least two million dollars, and the financing structure incorporates
reasonable customary terms for equity financing, then, the outstanding principal and accrued interest
will automatically convert into units.

If the subscriber has invested, in total, less than $50,000, the conversion price for their notes in a
qualified financing will be equal to 90% of the per unit price paid by the purchasers of such
membership units in the qualified financing.

If the subscriber has invested, in total, between S$50,000 and $100,000, the conversion price for their
notes in a qualified financing will be equal to 87.5% of the per unit price paid by the purchasers of
such membership units in the qualified financing.

If the subscriber has invested, in total, more than $100,000, the conversion price for their notes in a
qualified financing will be equal to 85% of the per unit price paid by the purchasers of such
membership units in the qualified financing.

The conversion price is subject to adjustment to reflect distributions and similar events as determined by
the company’s manager. The automatic conversion of the notes into membership units will be deemed to
occur as of the date of closing the qualified financing, or the date of the first closing in a series of closings
constituting quahified financing.

10



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

The maturity date of the 2016 notes was December 31, 2019, and although, the notes have reached their
maturity, none of the note holders have demanded repayment of principal and accrued interest for these
notes. In consideration for this, SciTech Development, LLC has continued to accrue interest at the stated
terms beyond the maturity date in these instances.

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total
Unknown S 165000 % 42 359 5 207,359

2018 NOTES

2. During 2018, SciTech Development, LLC issued $85,000 worth of 6% interest unsecured convertible
promissory notes, convertible into membership units. The notes are convertible at the option of the holders
with the following terms:

If at any time the company consummates a financing for the sale of equity in which the gross offering
proceeds to the company are at least two million dollars, and the financing structure incorporates
reasonable customary terms for equity financing. then, the outstanding principal and accrued interest
will automatically convert into units.

If a qualified financing has not occurred prior to the maturity date, then the company may elect, upon
notice of such election to convert any outstanding balance into membership units. The conversion
price per share shall be equal to the quotient of 510,000,000 divided by the aggregate number of
outstanding membership units as of the maturity date.

The maturity date of the 2018 notes is December 31, 2020, and although, the notes have reached their
maturity, none of the note holders have demanded repayment of principal and accrued interest for these
notes. In consideration for this, SciTech Development, LLC has continued to accrued interest at the stated
terms beyond the maturity date in these instances,

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total
Unknown §  R5.000 % 13,196 § 98,196

2019 NOTES

3. During 2019, SciTech Development, LLC issued $250,000 worth of 6% interest unsecured convertible
promissory notes, convertible into membership units. The notes are convertible at the option of the holders
at a conversion rate based on the qualified financing closing.

If the subscriber has invested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes no later than 180 days from the date of the subscriber’s
note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 25% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering.

If the subscriber has invested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes more than 360 days from the date of the subscriber’s

11



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

note, then the subseriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 50% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering.

e [If the subscriber has invested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes more than 360 days from the date of the subscriber’s
note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 100% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering.

e In addition to above, if the subscriber has invested, in total, greater than $100,000 pursuant to this
purchase agreement, then the subscriber will receive concurrently with qualified financing close a
warrant in an amount equal to 100% of the amount invested that exceeds $100,000 by the subscriber
in this offering. Each warrant will have a three-year term from the date of granting and an exercise
price equal to 80% of the unit price paid by the qualified financing investors.

The outstanding principal amount of the note, together with accrued but unpaid mterest, will be due and
payable, unless otherwise converted into units of the company by the note holder, pursuant to the maturity
date of December 31, 2021.

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total
December 31, 2021 5 250,000 5 21,947 5 271,947

SciTech Development, LLC also issued $250,000 was originally issued as a 7% convertible translation
research grant that could be converted to a convertible note, this grant would be due at the time that the
translation research was deemed successful. The note was adjusted in 2020 for an additional $10,332
which included accrued interest being recorded as an outstanding note, for a total unsecured convertible
promissory note of $260,332, with an interest rate of 6%. The note 15 convertible at the option of the
holders at a conversion rate based on the qualified financing closing.

e It the subscriber has invested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes no later than 180 days from the date of the subscriber’s
note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 25% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering,

e |f the subscriber has invested. in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes between 181 days and 360 days from the date of the
subscriber’s note, then the subsecriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 50% of the amount
invested by the subscriber in this offering.

e [If the subscriber has invested, in total, less than or equal to $100,000 pursuant to this purchase
agreement and the qualified financing closes more than 360 days from the date of the subscriber’s
note, then the subscriber will receive a warrant in an amount equal to 100% of the amount invested by
the subscriber in this offering.

e In addition to above, if the subscriber has invested, in total, greater than $100,000 pursuant to this
purchase agreement, then the subscriber will receive concurrently with qualified financing close a

12



SCITECH DEVELOPMENT, LLC
GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

warrant in an amount equal to 100% of the amount invested that exceeds $100,000 by the subscriber
in this offering. Each warrant will have a three-year term from the date of granting and an exercise
price equal to 80% of the per unit price paid by the qualified financing investors.

The outstanding principal amount of the note, together with accrued but unpaid interest, will be due and
payable, unless otherwise converted into stock of the company by the note holder, pursuant to the maturity
date of December 31, 2023.

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total
December 31, 2023 § 260332 § 0286 % 269.618

2020 NOTES

5. During 2020, SciTech Development, LLC issued $50,000 worth of 6% interest unsecured convertible
promissory notes, convertible into membership units. The note is convertible at the option of the holders
at a conversion rate based on the qualified financing closing,

The outstanding principal amount of the note, together with accrued but unpaid interest, will be due and
payable, unless otherwise converted into stock of the company by the note holder, pursuant to the maturity
date of December 31, 2023.

Year Ended Principal  Accrued Interest Total
December 31, 2023 $ 50,000 S 1,784 § 51,784

NOTE F - RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development costs are charged to operations when incurred and are included in operating
expenses. The amount charged in 2020 was $352,742.

NOTE G - EQUITY
As of December 31, 2020, SciTech Development, LLC had authorized 1,691,195 units, all of which are issued
and outstanding. During the wyear, there were 257,309 units authorized and issued, all of which are still

outstanding.

In addition to the umits above, SeiTech Development, LLC has 139,250 outstanding warrants which represent
the right, but not the obligation, to purchase units of SciTech Development, LLC,
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December 7, 2021

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
AT AUDIT CONCLUSION

To Management

SciTech Development, LLC
281 Kercheval Avenue

Grosse Pointe Farms, M1 48236

We have audited the financial statements of SciTech Development, LLC for the year ended December
31, 2020, and we will issue our report thereon dated December 7, 2021, Professional standards require
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information in our letter to you dated November 11, 2021, Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Cualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

You are responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by SciTech Development, LLC are described in Note A to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2020. We noted no transactions entered into by SciTech Development, LLC during the
year for which there 15 a lack of authoritative gmidance or consensus. All sigmficant transactions have
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements and are based on your knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and b